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Thursday, 25 July, 1946 

- - -
INrERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL 

FOR THE FAR EAST 
Court House of the Tribunal 

Wo~ Ministry Building 
Tokyo , Japan 

The Tr ibunal met , pursuant to adjoµnr· 1ent, 

- - -

I:: 

I 

: 
I 

11 I 

12 Appearances: 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

For the Tribunal , same as befor e . 

For the Prosecution Section, same as before. 

For the Def ense Section, same as before . 

- - -
(English to Japanese, Japanese to 

English, English to Chinese, and Chinese to 

English interpretation was made by the 

Language Secti on , IMTFE. ) 
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MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The In terna tional 

~111tary Tribunal fo~ the Far East is ·now resumed. 

THE PRESIDENT: All the accused are present 

except OKAWA who j_s represented by counsel. 

any counsel desire t o mention any matter? 

Does 

The Chief Referee of the Language Section 

saw me today and compl a ins t ha t on account of the 

unnecessary l ength of some of the que s tions, it is 

most difficult for the inter preters to perform their 

duties. Some of the pas snges from the Lytton Report, 

if ~ot the whole report, have already been translated 

into J apanese, and if t he transla tion were mane avail­

able to the interpret ers, their duties would not be 

$0 difficult . 

The inte~preters are a lso having difficulty 

with questions whi ch are in nega tive for~although 

they could be in a ffirma tive form . I again urge 

counsel to make t hair questions short and clear, and 

to give due noti ce of any pa ss~ ge from a report or 

other document whi ch they desire to be read to a wit-

ness. 

Is there any f urther cro s s ~examination? 

MR.. T. OKAMOTO : Moy I be permitted to continue 

my cross - examina tion of yes t erd ay? 
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CHING CROSS 

1 IC HING TE H - CHUN, called as a witness on 
I 

2 beh~lf of the prosecution , r esumed the stand and 

3 I testified as fo llows: 

4 CROSS-EXAMINATION (Continued) 

5 BY MR. T • .• OKAMOTO: 

61 Q Since the r eply to my last question yester-

7 day was not clear, I should like to have it repeated. 

8 ! A Yesterday I answered to the question by 
' 

9 lsAying that it wa s because the J aponese occupation of 

10 Tientsin and Peiping that many of the Chinese students 

11 were Communists and compelled to j oin the Communist 

12 Party. So it can be s aid tha t it was the Japanese 
I 

13 who indirectly nurtured the growth of the Communists. 

14 I Q Your present expl ana tion does not seem to 

15 I show any rela t i onship between cause and effect. Could 

16 you explain it further? 

17 A WQa t I have told you is concrete fact . 

18 Students, because of the f ac t. tha t Tientsin, Peiping 

19 and surrounding areas fell to the J apanese , were com-

20 pelled to j oin the Chinese Communists . This fact is 

21 a concrete fact . 

22 

23 

24 l7th, 

Q 

A 

When WPI S that? 

That is ref erring to some time after July 

1937. 
2
l l~~-Q~~T_h_e_n_,~a-o~yo~u~m-e_an~-t-o~s-a_y~t-h_a_t~t_h_1_s~w_a_s~a_r_t_e_r~~-• 

I 

1 

' 

I 

' 

' 1 
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1 the outbreak of the Marco Polo Bridge Incident, or 

2 are you trying to explain a situation which existed 

3 prior to that Incident? 

4 A Referring to t he time after the outbreak 

5 I of the July 7th Incident -- prior to the outbreak of 

6 t he July 7th Incident -- some of the students may have 

7 I been found to have some Left inclination, but there 

sl was never any Communist troops • 

9 

10 

J 1 

12 

13 

14 

l5 

16 
I 

17 1 
t 8 I 

191 
20 I 
21 

22 

2:> 

24 

25 

Q Then , a re you aware of the f act that on the 

tenth of June , 1935, Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek issue 

an executive order for friendly relRtions between two 

neighboring countries, namely , between China and Japan? 

A Yes, I know. 

Q Do you Jrnow the cause for the proclamation 

of such an order? 

A The purpose was to maintain peace in China, 

and ultimately maintain the peace of Asia, and ulti­

mately the peace of the world. 

Q Was not this ord er issued to prevent the 

general anti - J apanese movement in China, especially 

in North China, as well as the anti- J apanese resistance 

movement carriud on by the Communists in that northern 

ar ea? 

A At that time there was no anti-Japanese 

movement in North China . The purpose of the order was 
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----- - .. -------··--------- ----· ---
1 the outbreak of the Marco Polo Bridge Incident, or 

2 are you trying to explain a situation which existed 

3 pr i or to tha t Incident? 

4 A Ref erri ng to t he time af ter t he outbreak 

5 of the July 7th Incident -- prior t o the outbreak of 

6 the July 7th Incident -- some of the students may have 

7 been found to have some Left i nclination, but there 

s was never any Communis t troops. 

9 Q Then, are you aware of the f act tha t on the 

10 tenth of June , 1935, Gen~ralissimo Chiang Kai-shek issuec 

11 an executive order for friend l y relations between two 

12 neighboring countries , n~mely, be t ween China and Japan? 

13 A Yes, I know. 

14 Q Do you know t he cause for the pr oclamation 

15 of such an order? 

16 A The purpose was to ma intain peace i n China, 

• 17 and ultimatel y maintain the peace of Asia , and ulti-

18 mately the peace of the world . 

19 Q Vias not this ord er issued to prevent the 

20 general anti-Japanese movement in China, especially 

21 in North China , ns well as the anti-Japanese resistance 

22 movement carried on by the Communists in that northern 

2 . ., ar ea '? 

24 A At tha t time there was no anti-Japanese 

25 movement in North China . The purpose of the order was 

I 

I 

I 

J I 
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1 to admoni sh the people as a whole, as well as the 

2 1 Chinese Army , to respect and be friends with neighbor 

3 

·I 

:> 

6 

7 

8 • 

9 

10 

11 
I 

12 

13 

countries . 

Q Then, Mr . Witness , are you acqua inted with 

General Shang-chen who was in Nor th China about 1935? 

THE MONITOR: Correction: "who was the 

Governor of Hope i Pr ovince . " 

A Yes, I know. 

Q Are you a~are of the f a ct tha t Gener al Shang-

chen issued an order t o bring under contr.ol anti­

J apanese t errorist s ? 

A No, not thnt I ever heard of . 

Q Then , Mr. Witness, ar e you awar e of the fact 

14 that your superior, Gener al Sung Cheyuan, issued an 

15 I order declaring tha t very positive steps must be taken 

10 to brtng und er control the anti- J apanese secret so-

l 7 cieties in November, 193 5? 

l S A Tha t order was given on the basis of an 

-, 

19 order received by General Sung from Generalissimo Chi ang . 

20 There was a preventative order - - the order was prevent-

21 ative in nature . 

22 Q Wher e is Gener a l Sung Cheyuan a t the present 

2~ moment? 

24 A 

Q 

He is already dead now. 

Then, nr e you aware of the Hsi - an Incident 

__ I· 
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1- - ------

1 I or November, 1936? 

2 
A Yes, I know of tha t . 

Q Was not this Incident one in wht ch Marshal 

Ch~ng Hsueh- liang in collaboration with t he Chinese 
4 , 

Communis ts kidnapped and placed under custody Gener-
I 

6 al issimo Chiang Kai-shek? 

7 A That I don 't know. 

COL. l.!ORROW: I raise the ques tion of material-
s 1 

I 
9 

ity and r el evancy of this line of questioning, if the 

10 Court please. 

11 I MR. T. OKAMOTO: This i ncident has a very 

12 r el evant connection with t he present point . 

13 I 
THE PRESIDENT: I think i t is as r e l evant as 

14 any of the other mntt ers we have a llowed cross-examin-

1~ ation about . The whol e purpose is to discover the 

L6 sta t e of China - - its disturbed stat e is sugge sted, 

L7 and it is suggested, I suppose, tha t the Japanese took 

is appropri at e measur es to protec t their inter est! ther e , 

19 and it will be further suggested that they were ac~ing 

20 1 within treaties. This is a suggestion that the country 

21 was so disturbed tha t its chief was imprisoned. 

22 You may proceed . 

2."> Q· Does the witness know what kind of change 

24 took pl ace i n the r el a tionships between the Kuomintang 

2~ and the Chinese Communist Party as a r esult of the 

,_ 

•• 

I 

I 

• 
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Hsi-an Incident? 

A No, I don 't know. 

Q Where were you, Mr. Vii tness, at tha t time" 

A I was in Peiping then. 

Q What was your position at tha t time? 

A Then, I was the Mayor of Peiping. What I 

know is this: that aft er the Incident at Hsi-an, the 

person responsible for that incident was Chang Hsueh­

liang, becq.me r epentant, and then he sent Generalissimo 
'· 

bac~ to Nanking and then the people all over the 

country wer•; so overwhelmingly joyous that they showed 

the greatest sign of vindica ting the Generalissimo, 

and the country was unified as a whole ; and Japan, 

then, was so much jealous of tha t fact. 

Q When you say that China had never been mor e 

unifi ed than at that time, do you mean to say that 

peace and coll aboration was established between the 

Kuomintang and the Chinese Communists? 

A Yes, the feeling between the two parties 

were very good then. 

Q Does that not mean, then, that the Kuomin­

tang r esolved jointly with the Ch1.nese Communists to 

pursue n policy of anti-Japanese resistance? 

A No, that was not the case. The two parties 

joined together to prepar e themselves to guard against 
the f'urther onslaught of the Japan~se. 

I. 

I 
• 

I 

! 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
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Q I take your present reply to be an endorse -

ment of the statwment incl\tded in my question. This 

fact, t~gether with the fact that General Shang-Chen 

and General Sung Che- Yt1an- successively issu9d orders 

to bring under control anti-Japanese terrorists and 

other light groups is a matter which could be re­

cenciled with your present reply. 

MONITOR: Correction: I take your answer to 

mean the confirmat ion of the statement contained in 

10 my question. Now I would like to ask another question 

11 I on a different point, that is, in 193,, as I said 

12 I before, Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek issued an order 

13 for maintenance of frienj·ly relations with hi s 

14 1 neighbors and then that was followed later by orders 

15 from General Shang-Chen and General Sung Che-yuan 

16 for suppression and surveillance over terrorists and 

17 anti - Japanese secret societies . Now , how can these 

iB facts be reconciled with your present reply? 

19 THE PRESIDENT: Counsel must not make 

20 statements to the witness. That in effect is largely 

21 a conversation with the witness . Counsel must con-

22 fine himself to asking questions and the questions 

23 should be reasonably brief and clear . I do not 

24 think the witness should be asked to answer that 

25 question. You had better make another attempt . 

-, 
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18 

19 

20 
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Q Then, may I inquire, Mr . Witness, whether 

the executive order issued by the Go:·Leralissimo for 

friendly relations between two neighboring countries, 

that is, China and Japan was effective even after the 

Hsi -an Incident? 

A - Of course, it was conditional upon the fact 

that Japan should withhold her aggression. 

Q Since the Hsi-an Incident was any order 

issued to you, Er. ~Ji tness, from t he central head­

quarters of the Kuomintang Party with respect to a 

policy of anti-Japanism? 

A No . 

Q At about the time of the outbreak of the 

Marco Polo Incident on July 7, 1937, where was 

General Shih Yu-sun? 

A General Shih Yu-sun was first at Peiping 

and after the outbreak of t :1e war against Japan he 

went with General Sung to Paoting. 

Q Do you know of the fact that General 

Shih Yu-sun in the dark of the night of July the 

7th fir ed both upon Japanese and Chinese Troops? 

A What is the time you are r eferring to? 

Is it before the outbreak of the war of July 7th or 

after the outbreak of the war of July 7th ? 

Q Then I should like to ask you, did not the 
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... , 
Marco Polo Incident break out as a resul t of the fact I 

I 

that General ~ih Yu-sun fired both on Japanese and 

Chinese forces? 

A No. That is not the case. I will give you 

some further explanation. At the time the 37th Division 

was allegedly anti-Japanese was withdrawn from 

~ocllia.o · they were r epl aced by the t roops under 

8 1 
General Shih Yu-sun, who was then considered as pr o-

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Japanese. 

~ When did you, Mr . Witness, become a member 

of the Kuomintang? 

A I was a member of Kuomintang at the time the 

party was in its inceptive stage . 

THE PRESIDENT: Captain Brooks. 

MR . BROOKS : Brooks, for OKAWA. 

CROSS-EXAMI NATION (Continued) 

BY MR . BROOYJ3 : 

Q Mr . ',/ it~1es s , was a declarati on of war made 

by China or by Japan at the time of t he July, 193? 

Incident, or pr ior t hereto? 

THE FRESIDENT: That is a matter of which 

we can take judicial notice . 

MR . BROOKS : I f the Tribunal pl ease , the 

witness s tates , on page 5, of exhibit 198, which 

is prosecution's document i?50, this was the very 

.. 

I 

- - i 
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l 
beginning of the Sino-Japanese War. I wanted to find 

2 
out what he had in r ef er ence at that time. 

THE PRESIDENT : You can have war without 

4 having a declaration of it, unfortunately. 

MR. BROOKS : Uay the wi t ness answer, for 

6 the base of another question I have? 

7 THE PRESIDENT: It is us el ess, but he may 

s I answer. 

9 I A On the part of China ther e was never any 

10 I order like that, but on the part of the Japanese 

i 1 Government, I wonder if there is any order of what 

12 we call punit ive war against China. 

1'3 Q Now, on exhi bit 199, which is prosecution's 

14 document No . 2340 , you have stated in your discussion 

15 with MATSUI you advocated that Asia -- that he ad-

16 vacated ~hat Asia, should be the. Asia of the Asiatics, 

17 and that European and American influences should be 

18 expelled . I would like further information on the 

19 influences discussed that was considered necessary 

20 to be expelled . I would like further information 

21 on the influences discussed in this conversation 

22 that should be expelled. 

23 A In brief, what he wanted is to expel the 

24 British and American interests out of Asia. The 

25 subsequent facts that happened at Pearl Harbor and 

" 

-~1 

II 
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I~ --, 
1 the attack on Manila and other places will be factual I 11 

2 enough to prove that. 

THE PRESIDENT: We have had that answer before . 

4 I wish to enlarge upon the answer. Did 

5 not certain countries have powerful commercial interests 

6 in China which they were fostering . 

7 COLONEL 1IORROW: If the Court please , counsel 

s for General MATSUI went into this matter and I raise 

9 I the question that this is repetition. 

10 THE PRESIDENT: I thinl{ the question is 

11 objectionable on another ground entir ely, that unless 

12 I it can be shown that the action of other countries 

t 3 compelled the action taken by Japan, the whole thing 

14 is irrelevant . 

15 MR . BROOKS: That is exactly what I am going 

16 to show, if the Court please . 

17 COLONEL MORI, OW: I also raise the question 

18 of r elevancy, if the Court please. 

19 THE PRESIDENT: That is what I said to Captain 

:w Brooks . 

21 MR . BROOKS: I would like to point out, if 

22 the Coui;t please , that I r ead and laid the basis for 

23 this, that certain European and American influences 

24 should be expelled . I would like to correct my 

25 statement as to what I intend to prove. I do not 

. 

I 

j 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

! 
I 

I 

I 

11 

,, 

11 

11 

11 

I 
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intend to show that certain nations caused these con- -, 

ditions which brought about this war. I do believe 

; that certain powerful commercial inter ests, joining 

4 from various countries, brought about conditions which 

5 did bring this about, and I t hink with a little 

6 patience on the part of the Court I can bring that 

1 out, and I would like to get the information which 

s this witness has bearing upon it, for later on I will 

9 have witnesses of my own to carry on. 

lo I THE PRESIDENT: If you are not merely tishinng, 

11 but have evidence a~ you suggest, your questions should 

12 be very specific. They should be based on that 

13 evidence, and your questions are not specific; they 

14 are very vague, and I propose to disallow your ques-

15 tions until they are made specific, because you now 

16 say you have evidence. You must put your questions 

17 on that evidence. 

18 MR. BROOKS: If the Court please, I am now 

19 in the process of cross-examination. I am not pre• 

20 

21 

., ., 

senting evidence on this phase, but I have a right 

to knovr ·how far to carry my evidence and what re­

striction is placed on the cross-examination on the 

2; statements made that a conversation was had about 

24 European and American influences. It doesn't say 

25 European and .~merican nations; it says influences, 

I 

~ 

11 

I I 
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and I think that is very vital to this case . It is 

vital to know where China over all this period of 

years got the ar ms, tho war materiel, the equipment , 

and the technical assistance and training necessary 

2 ,490 

to prolong this strife , of which J apan was complaining 

because she was the r ecipient of t his strife which 

wa s carried on over a l ong period of time . 

THE PRESIDENT: Will you now state the 

natur e of this evidence. You can r efuse if you like, 

but at present so f ar as you have indicated it appears 

to be too r emote . 

tm. BROOKS: If the Court pl ease, I will 

show by t es timony, by affidavits, by certain r ecords, 

of which I think possibly ~·1e vrill ask the Court to 

take judicial knowledge of certain f acts, because 

they ar e of common knowledge , but I do not wish at 

this time to introduce evidence on this point or to 

expose to the pros ecution the evidence that we are 

accumulating . However, I will make one specific 

r~ference to an American concern, I believe it was 

the Curtis-Wl'ight concern, had a 30 million dollar 

aircraft pl ant t hat they wer e building in China at 

the time, a ver y critical time, and I think that 

will be shown l ater on in the t estimony. If that 

is any i ndication, I \"/ould like to proceed . 
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THE PRESIDENT : You have fallen back in this 

all eged evidence for your justification and we will 

fix yob t here . You have now made it transparently 

plaih that this evidence that you propose to r ely on 

is far too r emote to be of any assistance . Ther efor e , 

u 6 
1 I decline , on behalf of the Tribunal , to a llow you to 

d 
a 1 proceed with that line of cross- examination . 

8 MR. BROOKS: I s ee I will have to disclose 

further evidence to make my point clear. I state that 9 , 

10 behind that, even , ther e was a growing appr ehension 

11 I which may or may not have been justified by t he Japan-

12 

13 

14 

15 

IG 

17 

l S 

19 

20 

21 

2~ 

23 

24 

25 

ese and by Asiatic peoples after a study of the econo­

.mic aggression of the various countries of the world 

over a period of years far befor e this which may or 

may not have made them fe~l justified in taking cer­

t ain defensive measures which they t oday state arc 

def ens ive and which are and may be proven defensive 

in r egard to the r elations and 0cti,,ities of the 

various nations in r egard t o assisting and directing 

Chinese armies in the field during this period of time . 

Was the war started with Pearl Harbor, or was it 

started prior to 1931? 

T!lli PRESIDE.~1T: Tho more economic develop-

ments of ot her countries could not justify the 

Japanese r esort to war. 

- ---- - ... ·- ·- -

~1 

I 
I 
I 

I 
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MR. BROOKS: That is true , if the Court 

please, unless a close study of diplomatic history 

for the last sixty years is made to show that not only 

economic development is followed is carried on by 

various countries , but political aggression follows 

closely in tho footst eps and pr ot ective measures in 

various and sundry ways arc fost er ed by certain power­

ful commercial i nter ests which have been tho cause of 

most of our wars in tho past • 

THE PRESIDENT : Well, :l.t is clear that you 

wish to pursue an interminable inquiry going back 

sixty years, and for all we know, eighty years, going 

back perhaps to Japan ' s first contact with the outs ide 

14 I world. We cannot allow that. This Court would never 

15 
1 conclude its duties, would novor finish its work, if 

we allowed you to go tha~ far back. That is too 

17 r emote . If wo go back to first causes we may go back 

1s c~nturies . We have to take a r easonable view. We 

19 r efuse to allow you to proceed with that line of cross-

20 examination. 

21 MR . BROOKS : If the Court please, in Section tII 

22 of the Indictment ther~ is a charge made of economic 

23 aggression in China and Greater East Asia. There is 

24 no limit on that period of time, as has been shown by 

25 the prosecution in their cvidencd produced thus far. 

- 1 

' I ,. 
' 

-
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MR. BROOKS: That is true , if the Court 

please , unless a close study of diplomatic history 

2,492 
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for the last sixty years is made to show that not only 

economic devel opment is followed is carried on by 

various countries, but political ageression follows 

closely in tho footst eps and pr ot 0ctive measures in 

various and sundry ways arc fost er ed by certain power ­

ful commercial i nter ests which have been th0 cause of 

most of our war s in tho past • 

THE PRES IDENT: Well, it is clear that you 

wish to pursue an interminable inquiry going back 

sixty years, and for all we know, eighty years, going 

back perhaps to Japan's first contact with tho outside 

world . We cannot allow that . This Court would never 

conclude its duties, would never finish its work, if 

we allowed you t o go that far back . That is too 

r emote . I f wo go back to first causes we may go back 

c13nturies . We have to t ake a r easonable view. We 

19 r efuse to allow you t o proceed with that line of cross-

20 examination. 

21 MR. BROOKS : I f tho Court please , in SectiontII 

22 of the Indictment ther ~ is a charge made of economic 

23 aggression in China and Gr eater East Asia. There is 

24 no limit on that period of time , as has been shown by 

25 the prosecut ion in their cvidenccl produced thus far . 

-
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1 THE PRESIDENT : You are divorci ng that f r om 
-, 

2 its context. Economic aggress i on is not a crime . 

We have given our decision. 

4 MR . BROOKS: In this instance , if the Court 

5 pleas·e, if economic aggression--

6 THE PR!!:SIDENT: We r efus e t o hear you further 

7 on that. We have given our decision and our r easons 

8 for it and you arc simply wasting time now in pursuing 

9 I the matter. 

io I MR . BROOKS 1 If I may , I would like t o cr oss-
! 

11 exami ne on another point. 

12 THE PRES IDENTs Permission t o cross - examine 

13 on those points is r efus ed. 

14 MR . BROOKS1 I say on another point , if your 

15 Honor please . 

16 THE PRES IDENT : What is the other point? 

17 MR . !ROOKS: May I ask the question and have 

1s your Honor find out if it is proper? 

19 BY MR. BROOKS (Continuing); 

:w Q Did your government, during t his l ong per iod 

21 of trouble , make any f or mal complaint in reference t o 

22 any of the matters set out i n your t estimony t o either 

23 the Leagu€ of Nations, to the Japanese Government, or 

24 any other governments? 

25 A I was then only an official in the particular 

I 
i 
I 

' 

I 

I 

I 
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locality. Further, whether the central government 

foreign office had filed any official complaint with 

any of the governments or League of Nations, I cannot 

exactly t ell. But ther e was some formal protest made 

t o the League of Nations after September 18, 1931. 

Q Did you, in your official capacity for this 

area, forward any mat erial or r eports as a basis for 

8 : such complaints? 

9 A I ha<t r eported to my central government 

10 
1 

about the several provocative acts and aggressive acts 

11 ,, on the part of Japan. But whether the central govern-

12 ment had r eported same to the League of Nations, I 

13 

14 

17 

18 

19 

21 

..,.., ..... 

23 

24 

25 

don't know. 

THE PRESIDBNTs We will r ecess now for 

fi~ecn minutes . 

(Y/her eupon, at 1045, a r ecess was 

taken until 110~, after which the proceedings 

wer e r esumed as follows:) 
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- -·- -··---- -- . ----- -------------

MARSHAL OF THE COURT : The Tr ibunal is now 

resumed . 

THE PRESIDENT : Capt a in Brooks . 

Q On what da t es wer e t hese r eports tha t you 

have mentioned made? 

A I cannot r ecall t he exact dat es . Whenever 

there is an i ncident occurred , the r eport was immedi­

ately made . 

Q Can you r ecall t he year i n which any such 

repor ts were made? 

A For i nst ance , t hi s Cha- Peh affair -- about 

the Cha-Peh Incident, a negotiation was made in June, 

1935; and f ollowing every ne gotiation, I made r e ­

ports. And I vras negotia ting on the instructions 

sent to me by the Central Government , and I have made 

my report to the Central Government on e very negoti a­

tions I had . 

Q This affair i n 1935 that you r efer to , di d 

"ha t have any connection with the ki dnapping of 

Chi ang Kai-shek? 

A Ther e i s no r el a tion . 

Q I believe I r ecall tha t was in 1925, was 1t 

not? 

A Which c ase do you r ef er to? 

Q The ki dnapping of Chi ang Ka i - shek. 
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- - -- -----·- - --- --· ·--------· 

MARSHAL Or' THE COURT: The Tribunal is now 

resumed. 

THE PRESIDENT: Captain Brooks . 

Q On what dates wer e t hese r eports that you 

have mentioned made? 

A I cannot r ecall the exact dates . Whenever 

there is an i ncident occurred, the r eport was immedi­

ately made . 

Q Can you r ecall the year in which any such 

reports were made? 

A For instance , this Cha-Peh affair -- about 

the Cha-Peh Incident, a negotiat i on v1as made in June, 

193'; and foll owing every negotiation , I made r e­

ports . And I VTas negotiati ng on the instructions 

sent to me by the Central Government, and I have made 

my r eport to the Central Government on e very negotia­

tions I had. 

Q This affRir in 1935 that you r efer to, did 

-tha t have any connecti on with the kidnapping of 

Chiang Kai-shek? 

A There is nor el ation. 

Q I believe I r ecall tha t vms in 1925, was it 

not? 

A Which case do you r ef er to? 

Q The kidnapping of Chiang Kai- shek. 
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~---I-th_i_n_k--y-ou_h_a._ve--m-a_d_e_a mistak~ o_f_ t_h_e __ y_e_a_r ___ I 
in which General Chiang Kai-shek was kidnapped. j 

Q What wa s your offi ci al position at the time 

this r eport was made in 1935? 

A I was then the Deputy Commander of the 29th 

6 Arnll and concurrently the Speci al Commissioner of 

7 Civilian Affairs in the Cha-Peh Provincial Govern-

8 

9 

10 

11 

ment . I was then· stationed in Chahar. 

Q To who and to what br anch of the Central 

Government was such r eport directed? 

A I was obliged to make r eports separately to 

12 several organs. As the Deputy Commander of the 29th 
13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

l S 

19 

20 

Army I was obli ged to make r eports to the Ministry of 

Military Affairs; and , as Speoial Commissioner of the 

Department of Civilian Affairs of the Chahar Provin­

cial Government, I wa s obliged to make r eports to 

the Executive Yuan. 

Q What was contained in this r eport that you 

made in 1935? Do you mmember the gist of the report? 

A I think you had better r ef er to the state-

21 ments I had already written in r egard to the results 

22 of negotiations I had. 
23 

24 

25 

Q Do you show in such statement the contents 

of such r eport as you have t es tified to? 

THE MONITOR: Will the r eporter please read 

I 

I 
' l 
l 

I 
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--·- ··--·-·-··--------- - -------- -·-- .. -··--------- -
that. 

(Whereupon the last question was 

read by the official court r eporter.) 

A Do I understand you that you want me to 

make a complete r eport of the cable s sent forth and 

back from the Central Government to me and from me 

to the Central Government, which is about two 

inches high? 

Q I wont a brief summary of the giat of the 

1935 repor t which you t estificd you sent after that 

incident . 

A The first major point in the r eport I made 

~n 1935, June , is like this: I r eported that there 

were two J apanese civilians and two Japanese military 

officers coming in from To- Lun by truck. They were 

then trying to force their entry into the North Gate 

of Chang-Peh district . At the gates they wer e 

stopped by the gate guard who asked them to produce 

their passports . They r efused and quar.r el ensued. 

THE PRESIDENT : Do you r eally think it will 

help us to have this story over again? Af ter all , 

you have to convince us, you know. 

CAPTAIN BROOKS: I was asking of the r epor ts 

with the purpose of ascertaining the dates they were 

made so that it might be obtained for defense 

·--------·- ·---

l 

I 

! 

I 

I 

I 

·--- , . 
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that . 

(Wher eupon the last questi on was 

r ead by the official cour t r eporter . ) 

A Do I under stand you that you want me to 

make a comple t e r eport of the cables sent forth and 

back f r om the Central Government to me and from me 

to the Central Government , which is about two 

inches high? 

Q I want a brief summary of the giat of the 

1935 r epor t which you t estificd you sent after that 

i ncident. 

2,497 

A The fir st ma jor point in the r epor t I made 

~n 1935, J une , is like this : I r eported that there 

were two Japanese civilians and two Japanese mil itar y 

officers coming in from To- Lun by truck. They were 

then trying to force their entry into the North Gate 

of Chang-Peh district . At the gat~ s they wer e 

stopped by the gate guard who asked t hem t o pr oduce 

their passports . They r efused and quarr el ensued. 

THE PRESIDEN~ : Do you r eally t hink it will 

help us to have this stor y over agai n? After all , 

you have to convince us, you know. 

CAPTAIN BROOKS: I was asking of the r eports 

with the purpose of ascertaining the dates they were 

made so that it might be obtained for defense 

- ·--------
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materi al ; if there was any discrepancy or any other 

matter that might explain t_hem , to see what action 

was t aken by the Chinese Governmcn t upon t hem , and 

if they \'/er e consider ed impor t ant at tha t time ; and 

I believe it will be r el evant i n thi s case . 

THE PRESIDENT : I don 't think it will help 

a t al l , Captain Brooks . I don ' t know what my col­

l eagues think. I fee l t hey agree with me . 

Do keep i n mind that we r eally want to hear 

the things tha t will help us to sec the defense view­

point. But these small things won ' t, particularly 

as we have heard them befor e , ond mor e than once . 

CAPTAIN BROOKS: I f the Court please, what 

I am 'trying to show is the defense viewpoint on this 

thing that l ooks to me liko it is being disallowed on 

cross- examinati on . I think that, wher e he has made 

1 a statement her e , although what he is saying in the 

r eport is r epe titious, we ar e ge tting that it wus 

made in the r eport of June, 1935 by him as the 

Deputy Commnnder of tho 29th Army, and it was made 

t o the Central Government, t o certain ot f1ces, wher e 

it might be examined for further information; and we 

would like to put t he truth b efore the Court . 

The truth i n these ~otters should come out 

r egardless of how it affects any party so tha t the 
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ma t erial; if ther e was any discrepancy or any other 

matter t hat might explai n t.hem, t o see wha t ac tion 

was t aken by the Chinese Governmen t upon them, and 

if they wer e consider ed i mportant a t tha t time ; and 

I believe it will be r el evant in this case . 

THE PRESIDENT: I don 't think it will help 

at all, Captain Brooks . I don ' t know wha t my col­

l eagues think. I feel they agree with me . 

Do keep in mind tha t we r eally want to hear 

the things tha t will help us to sec the defense view­

point. But these smal l things won't, particularly 

as we have hear d them befor e , and mor e than once . 

CAPTAIN BROOKS: I f the Court please, what 
l •J 

I " 

I am 'trying to show is the def ense viewpoint on this 

thing tha t looks to me like it is being disallowed on 
16 

' cross- examination. I think that, wher e he has made 
17 

1 a sta t ement her e , although what he is saying in the 
I S 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

r eport is r epe titious, we ar e getting that it was 

made in the r eport of June, 1935 by him as the 

Deputy Commander of tho 29th Army, and it was made 

to the Central Government, to certain Offices, where 

it mi ght be examined for further information; and we 

would like t o put t he truth b efore the Court . 

The truth i n these ~atters should come out 

r egardless of how it affects any pe!rty so tha t the 
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1 I Court has it before it. It is often elusive to find 

2 

3 I 

"' 

the truth, and it is often hard to get it believed 

and to get the viewpoint of a certain group or 

individual seen~ 

THE MONITOR: Would the r eporter kindly 

6 r ead that l as t sta t ement? 

7 (Wher eupon tho l ast par agraph -was 

8 r ead by the of f icial court r eporter.) 

9 CAPTAIN BROOKS: A misunderstanding of the 

10 intentions of certain parties often would even to 

11 mitigation-• if only t o mitigation alone, should 

12 be allowed t o be brought to the Court for the purpose 

13 of showing mitigating circumstnnces as the basis for 
14 

15 

16 

J7 

JS 

19 

20 

21 

certain a ctions . I think thnt the prosecution in 

this case hns started this case with 1928 when tho 

shooting started, but in any criminal ca se --

THE MONITOR: Would the r eporter please 

r ead the last statement? 

(Whereupon, the l as t sta t ement 

was r ead by the official court reporter.) 

THE PRESIDENT: I think we had better 

22 t e r minat e this matter by t he under standing that the 

23 Tribunal will give you every assistance tog et that 
24 I 

I r eport if it will be r el eased by the Chinese Govern-
25 I ment, 

I_ 
or to have n Commiss i on, if necessary, in 

----------



,,. 

• 

• 

J 

-----·--- --~LO--

2,~00 

CHING CROSS 

1 China if the matters in the r eport are really of im~ 

21 portance to you. In the meantime, I think you had 

3 better cease cross-examining about that r eport. 

• . , CAPTAIN BROOKS: I will cease cross-exam-

~ ining on that r eport. I was glad to find out that 

f, ther e was a r eport so that we could discover it. 

7 Previous to this we did not know wher e it was or any.. 1 

s thing about it • 

Q Now, in 1937, at the time of the Marco Polo 

1o Bridge Incident, what wos your official position at 

11 that time? 

12 THE PRESIDENT: Captain Brooks, I would ask 
13 your cooperation with the Court. You arc asking 

14 

I~ 

16 

17 

IS 

19 

: 1 

22 

23 

24 

things already obtained. 

CAPTAIN BROOKS : I want to find out: Did 

you make a r eport in your official capacity as such? 

THE PRESIDENT: Counsel owes a duty to tho 

Tribunal. The position of American counsel is no 

different from that of British counsel; they arc 

officers of the Court, and they must help the Court 

and not impede it. 

Q Now, Mr. Witness, do you know what claim 

China h~d to sovereignty over the t erritory of Outer 

Mongolia and whether t he orders of the Central Govern­

ment wer e obeyed by the off i cials ther e up to the 

II 

li 

I 
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I 
i j year 1945? 

2! THE PRESIDENT : That has been put and 

3 I answer ed. That is r epetition, 

CAPTAIN BROOKS: I was asked by associ ate 

' ' counsel to ask that questi on. I hadn't heard it I 
6 myself, your Honor . I think you are thinking about 

7 Manchuria . ~e were t nlking about Outer Mongolia. 

THE PRESIDENT: The questi on was put gener-

9 ally before on the control e xercised by the Central 

10 Government over the troops 1n tho outside areas. 

11 

15 

16 
I 

• 171 
18 

I 
19 I 

21 

22 I 

23 

___ .-......;_ -- --
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Q General , where did you r eceive your tr3ining 

as a staf f officer? 

THE PRESIDENT: The a nswer cannot help us. 

MR. BROOKS : If the Court please , I won't ask 

p 5 any fur ther on cross-examinati on . I would like, as a 
r 
a 
t 
t 

6 matter of informati on now to know if (')n our defense we 

7 will be limited in showing t he conditions previous to 

s when the sho6ting bega.n, involving the question of who 

9 , supplied the weapons; the arms , the muniti ons and 

io mat erials -- with which war was engaged with these 

tl various r ebels and bandits -- wer e used to kill Japanese 

12 aitizens and to viola t e their property rights . I be-

13 l ieve it is very mater ial. 

14 
1 

THE PRESIDENT: We want to understand the de­

l5 fense fully, but this line of cross-examination is not 

l6 helping us to understand the defense • 

17 MR . BROOKS: If the Court please, in a criminal 
I 

18 case you ar e allowed to go back into the motive as to 

19 who furnished the weapons, whether it was conspiracy 

20 iand what was said before the sho6ting actually taDk 
I 

21 place. This is a criminal case, and it is very im-
22 portant to know what large commercial interest and 
23 wha t other inter ests -- black markets or undercover 
24 agents or otherwise -- wer e furnishing arms of which 
25 J apan complai ned numerous times, not only to China , 

~~- .. ~---~- -- --

I~ 

ii 
_IJ 

& 

~ 

" 
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l !but to other nations of the world. It is possible 
I 

2 lthat this is not the proper time, on cross-examination, 

3 to ask that type of questi on. I understand I have been 

4
1
r efused t o cross- examine along those lines. However, 

~ lthe question for a point of information was: Is the 

6 1def ense proper in going ahead and preparing this as 

1 a matter of defense evidence along thnt line , to show 

s !the r el ationship be tween Japan and China , and the 

9 damage that was caused to Japan by these conditions 

10 that prevailed, and powerful commercial interests in 

11 ltheir marketing various ar ms and supplies -- petroleum 

12 and war mat erials -- that was allowing this strife to 

13 continue over this long peri od of years -- fifteen 
I 

14 years befor e 1931. 

15 THE PRESIDENT: V!ell, put your questions, and 

l6 I will say whether they will be allowed or disallowed • 
t 

11 Put your question, and I will s ay whether it is allowed 

18 or not. 
19 I Q Mr. Witness, hasn't ther e been a constant 

20 growing or increase in t ension and antipathy between 

21 the Chinese and Japanese since the year 1900, and a 

22 desire by the National Government or Central Government 

23 of China for the r etr enchment of certain t erritories 
24 fihi ch it has lost previously? 

THE PRESIDENT: I suppose "re trenchment" means 
I 

-- -~ ·--

I 
I 

t ! 
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1 
r ecovery. 

I 

2 MR . BROOKS: Recovery. 

3 I THE PRESIDENT: I think i t somewhat remote, 

4 lbut I will not prevent t he witness f rom answering. 

5 A Ever since t he Sino-Japanese War, it was but 

6 evident that the Chinese peopl e as a whole wer e trying 

7 I their best to li\re up to the standards of a modern 

8 world . It was not the desire of the Chinese people ~-

9 Chinese Government -- t o r ef!0Vo!.' 'thei r lost t er r itory 

10 right then, but it was the desire of the Chinese dovern­

ll ment to have the national strength consolidated, and 

12 put the nati on on a modern basis. I said that the 

13 Chinese Government was r ealizing its feeble strength, 

14 but was not prepar ed to r ecovery the lost territory. 

15 This can be pro-.rcd by the f act the. t while the Ct.inese 

16 not as a whole re~P.nted the i mposing by the Japanese 

17 of the twen-~·y- o:".le demands on China, tho Chinese Govern-
18 ment has ver y , very r oluctantly accepted it . Due to the 

I 

19 fact that J apari.ese agg::-ess ion knew no bounds, and the 
20 f act t hat the Chinese Government then was a very weak 
21 

22 

23 

24 I 
25 l 

one , the Cidnese people rose end put out this foreign 

expeditionary foree, ~nd had that Government thrown out. 

Q The weakness of the Chinese Government, t 1ough, 

was not the only rec.son v1hy for ei gn nati ons found it 

necessary to keep troops sta tioned i n China; i s that true ,_ 
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- . ---·----,- ·-·-· - ----
' A Only Japan took that advantage of stationing 

2 
troops there; other na tions didn't. 

3 
Q Mr . Witness , as a r esul t of the BoxerProtntol:.t, 

4 other nations had troops ther e , but even bes ide tha t 

5 r eas on and the activities of bandits and r ebels being 

6 prevalent in China over this long period of years, 

7 wer en't there still other rea9ons why foreign nations 

8 had troops stationed in China? If you know of them, I 

9 would like to have them stated. 

10 THE PRESIDENT~ You should suggest the reasons, 

1.1 if you know them , and not llnave him guessing . This cross-

12 examinati on is mos t unenlightening. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2-1 

25 

MR . BROOKS: May he answer that question, if 

he lmows'l 

THE PRESIDENT: I do not expect hi m to answer it1 

You suggest the reasons, a nd he may or may not adopt 

t ·hem. That is the correct way . 

Q Mr. Witness, would i t not be a reasonable 

apprehension, that could be entertained by the Jap anese 

residents as a r esult of numerous incidents, that 

another Boxer upris ing might be i mminent ? 

THE· PRESIDENT: The sta t e of Chinn from 1900 

on is not r e levant, and is too r emote. 1'rll:.t we want to 

disco•er i s t hE:' sta t e of China as of the times when 

the Japanese took action, when the Japanese armed forces 
') ,_ 

-· 

:! 

I I 

I 

. 

I 

j 
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began to operate . The conditions then are the t hings 
l 

2 
that we want to know. You CQnnot go back forty years. 

3 I MR . BROOKS: In this case, the shooting 

4 !started in 131 on a large scal e, but since it is a 

5 !' criminal case I have considered -- the defense has 

6 considered it r elevant to show tQe conditions giv-

7 jing rise to the mounting blood pressures in the various 

8 countries -- of nationals -- their apprehensions and 

9 fears, their conflictinP, commercial interests, end to 

JO show that hos~tili ties, o.l though not openly declared, 

11 started long before this period as shown by numerous 

12 incidents -- several hundred has been t es tified to by the 

13 prosecution 1 s own witness her e . 

14 THE PRESIDENT: I would suggest to you, with 

l 5 all respect , I hate to say anything that may appear 

16 offensive to ~ounsel, more particularly to American 

17 counsel who are practically str angers to me, that you 
18 frame your questions more carefully, and with a view to 
19 ~ssisting . the Court, keeping in mind that it is your duty 
20 to assist the Court. 
21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

one. 

We will recess now until thirty minutes past 

(Whereupon, at 1200, a recess was taken 

until 1330, aft er which the proceedings were re­

sumed as followss) 
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AFTERNOON SESSION 

2,507 

I 
I 

The Tribun~ l met, pursu3nt to recess, at 1338.1 

MARSHAL OF THE COURT : The International 

Uilit::i ry Tribunal for the Fnr East is now resumed. 

C H I N G T E H - C HUN, called ~ s a witness on 

behalf of the prosecut ton , r esumed the stand and 

t nstified as follows : 

BY MR . BROOKS (Continuing): 

Q Mr. Witness, previous to 1937, did you, ns 

a representative of China in that area ever request 

Any ass istance of J ap2nese , or even of Chinese troops, 

from other a reas for the purpose of policing your 

area of responsibility and maint~ining peace and order 

therein? 

A I am not quite clear about the question 

you ask. 

THE PRESIDENT: Witness , did you ever seek 

t he assistance of the J Apanese or other Chinese to 

mAint ain order in your particular district? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

Q Prior to 1937, Mr. i:atness , do you lmow 

whether Gener~l Chiang Kai-shek or any other Chinese 

'l 
r~ 

- I 
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officials requested financial or any other type of 

2 as sistance to r estore peace and order i n China and 

3 in your ar ea or North China? 

4 A V/hat do you mean? I don 't quite under-

5 I stand your question . Do vou mean the Generalissimo 

61 and othe r gener als r equested my as sis t ance or requested
1 

10 I 

13 

15 

the as sistance f r om J apanese side? 

Q The l atter. Wa sn ' t J apanese national assis-

t ance sought and wRsn't Japanese troops r equested 

to be given as policing troops for your ar eas as 

well as other nations consulted by your officials 

on reports made from your ar eas and VRr ious other 

areas in order to r estor e peace and order to the 

whol e of China'? 

A (Inter preter): He is answer i ng to the first 

16 
1 of your question. He said: "Ther e was no r equest made 

11 I 

18 I 

I 
• <> I 
20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

in r ega rd t o military troops but ther e was some dis­

sension about economic collabora tion. But , tha t is, 

economic colla bor~tion was sugges t ed by the J apanese 

side." 

Q Did this economi~ coll~ born tion that you 

speak of involve any dealings in war ma t er ials, arms, 

ammunition, to give nssistenc e to Rny of the opposing 

f actions in Chinn on t he part of an association of 

J apanese businessmen or nny company or corporation of 

J • ---

I 
I 
I 
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J apan? If so, please name them. 

A No . 

THE PRESIDENT: Capta in Brooks, it must be 

obvious to you f r om the trouble the interpre ters are 

ge tting that your questions are f ar too long, to say 

the l east . 

MR. BROOKS : I will try to ask shorter ones, 

your Honor. I have mnde them f a irly long so the 

complete idea would bo expr~ ssed without a s eries of 

short ques tions that might not have any meaning to 

the Court . 

Q Durtng thi s period of trouble in China, in the 

civil war previous to 1937, did China have outside 

r esources for war materials, weapons and equipment? 

Do you know what they were? 

A I don't know anything about it. 

Q Was the a rms and ammunition used by you 

and your armies and by the opposing factions that 

you were in conflic t with previous to 1937 all of 

Chinese make or manufactur e? 

THE PRESIDENTS Wha t bearing on the issue 

has the origin of the Chinese wnr mat erial? 

MR. BROOKS : I have heard, if your Honor 

please, I know, and we will show in evidence what t he 

J apanese opinion has been of the conditions prevailing 

·--~ 

-. 

l 



. 

1 I 
2 

31 
41 
5 I 

G I 

7 

sl 
9 

10 I 

11 I 
12 

131 
1-1 

15 I 
LG 

,..... - 17 

18 
I 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2,510 

CHING CROSS 

prior to this outbreak of w~ r and of the various 

commercial interests involved ther e . 

THE PRESIDENT: You have not answer ed my 

ques t ion. I want to know what bear ing en the issue 

the origin of the Chinese war materia l has . 

UR . BROOKS 1 It is difficult with thi s con-

stnnt interruption from the int er pretation, but I 

wan ted to add further thRt I ~anted to find from the 

Chinese side, from a hostile , evident hosti le witness 

in this case to the def&nse, the interests that they 

said, if there were ~ny of the members of the Zaibatsu 

of Japan not r epr esented by these accused who were 

res ponsible for the confl ict of commercia l i nte r ests; 

and i t has a bearing in this case . In Exhibit No . 199, 

prosecution paper 2340 , in the discussion which was 

a current topic at tha t t i me cmong Asiatics, was 

whether European and American influences should be 

expelled and a discussion of what would t ake place , 

whet her they would be J apanese or other wise. It has 

been shown recently that the Civil War in China has 

been pr olonged by fu rnishing ma t erials . I think it 

will be shovm thnt materinls wer e furnished the Jnpan­

ese that made t his war possible , thc. t these v~rious 

interests in confl ict cre~ted ~ sttuation that wa s 

cnusing the loss of lives of Japanese residents and 

I 
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destruction of property of which J apan had through 

various negotia tions in over three hundred instances 

by diplomatic measures, even going to the League of 

Nations, and finally withdrawing because she was not 

given any assistance, was forced to take action. 

The defense f eels thAt it ha s a responsibility· 

to put forth these conditions and facts surrounding 

the charges, surrounding the conditions and actions 

t aking place which might have influenced the defendants 

in making certain decisions and which will explain 

~nd cast, possibly, a different light on t he acts 

t aken by the various pD.rties ~nd t end to justify, 

mitiga t e or even shift the r esponsibil i ty to other s 

for what happened. 

THE PRESIDENT: We don't permi t you to 

indulge in these generalities . Your questi on must 

be directed to specific matters . No counsel ever 

attempts to do wha t you ar e trying to do . You are 

simply wasting time. Whenever I ask you for specific 

information , what your questions ar e directed to , 

wha t evidence you have to back them up, you indulge 

in n genera l address. Tha t is not permitted to any 

counsel. 

NR. BROOKS: The que stions, if the Court 

please, tha t I am ~sking ar c not in r e l ation to a 
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1 specific thing. They are in relation to general 

: , conditions which require a general answer to the 

3 Court's instruction as to what I am trying to show. 

·i I will go to another point . 

THE PRESIDENT: Your attitude is so utterly 

unreasonable that it is diff icult to control in the 

7 ordinary way . Counsel r Rrely puts a court in that 

8 

11 

12 

13 

15 

16 

17 

1 f, 

19 

:! 1 

22 

23 

24 

..... _,, 

situa tion. 

MR. BROOKS: If I h~ve off ended the Court, 

I wish to 3pologize. It may be a difference in 

customs in presenting ~ case. In the cases that 

I hnve tried in American courts, the counsel is 

allowed uninterruptedly to present cross-examin~tion 

in defense 3 S long ns he thinks it is material and 

l nter will try to connect i t up; ~nd if i t is not 

material and not connected up, the Court at that 

time rules it out of order or strikes it for f ai l ure 

t o tie it up. I wish to ~pologize. 

I 

I 
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Q Were there not, Mr. Witness, officers,in 

1937,of the armies of other nations attached to these 

various Chinese units as observers, consultants, 

directors, and as active participants in the military 

action at that time and previous thereto? 

COLONEL MORROW: We object on the ground of 

relevancy and immateriality, if your Eonor please . 

MR . BROOKS : If the Court please, I think it 

would be very relevant to show what officers, how 

many , and vn1at their activities were previous to this 

time . I am asking about 1937, previous to 1937, and 

also previous to 1941. There has been,also, much dis ­

cussion in the papers and in various diplomatic 

addresses about forc ing Japan to commit the first 

overt act , and I think the first overt act, as the 

prosecution has presented it, has been as of 1941 in 

some cases against some nations , and 1931 in others, 

and I think this line of questioning may bring out 

certain other conditions that may very well be regarded 

as an overt act which led to an ageressive policy, 

against which Japan was finally forced to take 

defensive action. 

THE PRESIDENT: The question is disallowed . 
24 Q In your discussion with Mr. MATSUI, set out 
2~ I on page 4 of exhibit 199, when you discussed the 
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: I 
4 

European and American influences that shoul d be 

expelled and the J apanese attitude , was there any 

discussion as to the hold on Asia 's markets and 

r esources having anything to do with the Japanese 

5 attitude and expression •i\sia for the Asi atics?n If 

6 so , state what it wa s . 

7 I am going to reframe the question , if you 

8 
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l1 
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please , I can make that shor ter . 

THE PRESIDENT: The Court will now recess 

in order to consider their position. 

(Wher eupon , at 1410 , a r ecess was 

taken until 1430, aft er which the procsedings 

were r esumed as follows : ) 

-~--~---------
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DEPUTY MARSHAL OF TH~ COURT : The Tribunal is 
u 
d 2 

now r esumed. 
a 

3 
THE IBESIIENT: The Tribunal has decided that 1nj 

~ 4 I the future all cross - examinat ion shall be limit ed to 
w 
h 
a 
1 
e 
n 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

] ] 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2'1 

22 

23 

24 

matt ers arising in the examination in chief . 

MR. BROOKS : If the Court please , I would only 

I like t o make one observat ion and t hat is on exhibit 199• 

There was a discussion by MATSUI r eferred to as to Asia 

should be the Asia of the Asiatics, and that European 

and American infiucnces should be expell ed . And my 

line of questioning has been in line with the witne~s' 

own affidavit in which a discussion was made of those 

vital f actors of which Japan had complained, and which 

are the ba s es and the f eatures of this worl d holocaust 

that should be pointed out and condemned by this Tri­

bunal. 

Tl1~ PRESIDLNT : Is that the end of the cross-

examination? 

MR. BROOKS : No further cross- exami nation of 

this witness. 

COLONEL MORROW: If your Honor please, we have 

no dir ect examination. 

THE PRESIDENT : Ther e is only one question I 

should ask of the witness . 

25 I Have you any r eason to doubt the genuineness 

'-
' 

-- ·- __ ,_ __ _ · -· ... 
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------
of the TANAKA Memorial? 

MR . FURNESS : Does that--

THE PRESIDENT: Now , let tho witness answer . 

THE WITNESS : I cannot prove that it i s a t r ue 

one , but at the same time I also have no means to dis ­

prove it . But as the development we have witnessed i n 

the latt er stages of J apanese aggression it s eems t o me 

that the author TANAKA had made himself a ver y good 

profit . 

THE MONITOR : Engl ish supplements : If TANAKA 

Memorial was untr ue , was cooked up , everything pr edicted 

in i t has been car ried out . 

THE PRESIDENT : Major Furness. 

MR. FURNESS : My object ion, sir, was t o the 

quest ion put by the Pr esident , that it assumed t hat t her e 

had been any proof that such a memor ial exist ed . As f ar 

as this case has gone I think t her e has been no such 

proof . 

THE PRESIDENT: The question is put i n the 

interest s of tho defense . 

MR . FUR NESS : Thank you, sir . 

CAPTAIN KLEIMAN: May i t please t he Tr ibunal, 

in th~ inter est of tho defense , may I ask t hi s witness 

I just one question concerni ng t he TANAKA Memorial? 

I THE PRESIDENT : '------------

No. We wc1io t old · ther e was no 
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1 further cros s- examination. 

4 

5 

6 

7 
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10 

11 
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CAPTAIN KLEIMAN: Al l r ight , your Honor. 

THE PRESIDENT : We will ke ep t o that. 

Now , t her e i s another question that I--

Which of the t wo HASHIMOTOS , if either, is the 

accused? The witness r ef erred t o t wo in his exam-

i nation in chief . 
THE WITNESS: Neither of them, of the 

HASHIMOTOS I mentioned in the wr itten statement, can 

be identified with the HASHIMOTO accused in this case. 

MR. BROOKS : Your Honor, I was going to 

point out he previously t ust ified that neither of them 

them wer e t hi s man. 
THE PRESI DENT : I s ther e any further r e-

examination? 

Mr. Smith. 
MR . SMITH: Your Honor, evidently t he Court 

came back unexpectedly and most of the Japanese 

counsel wer e out of the room when you made t he 

ruling . could we have the r eporter r ead that back 

for their benefit? 

THE FRESIDENT: Counsel who were i n the room 

ar e quite capable of advis ing those who were not . 

COLONEL MORROW : I under st and this witness 

may be dismissed , if tho Court pl ease? 

THE PRESIDENI': The witness may go • 

--------

I 

! --
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DEPUTY MARSHAL OF THE COURT : The witness will 

sign this oath: "I swear that the t estimony I havo given 

is a true statement." 

(Whor oupon, a document was signed by 

the witness.) 

THE PR ESIDENT : The Repres entative of China 

advises me t hat t hat is the Chinese form. 

(Wher .:;upon , the witness was excused . ) 

COLONEL MORROW : If the Court please , pursuant 

to a per mission of this Court t o take certain witnesses 
10 

1 out of turn fr om tho Republic of China , I desir e to 
L L l pr es ent for that purpose further, Mr . David Nelson 
12 

Sutton of the bar of West .Point, Virginia , and of the 
L3 

bar of the Supr emo Court of tho United States, a member 
14 

15 

L7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

of the pr osecution staff, who wi ll present certain wit­

nesses from China out of order , wit h the permission of 

this Court. 

THE PRESIDENT: For t ho information of other 

.Members of the Tribunal you mi ght explain what you mean 

by out of order . 

MR . SUTTON: May it please the Tr ibunal , the 

witnesses are pr es ented without at · this time presenting 

certain documents which would normally have been pre­

sented. Tho witnesses ar c pr es ented one after the other . 

The evidence will be connected up later. 

• 

- :ii 

I 

l 

-
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THE PRESIDENTs I understand these witnesses 

2, will deal wi th matter s which ordinarily would have been 

3 presented at later · stages, but I had no idea you wer e 

-: going to dispense with documents. 

•• MR . SUTTONS We are not pr esenting any docu-

<· ments except the affidavits of the witnesses. 

THE PRESID~NTs That microphone is in a bad 

R posit ion. We have the great est difficulty hoering . 

0 counsel at that l ectern. 

10 MR . SUTTON: Tho statement which I made was 

11 that we ar o not at this time pres enting any documents 

12 except tho s t at omaJ.t of t ho witncs.s. 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 1 

22 

23 

THE PRESIDENT: Well, pr oceed. 

Am . FURNESSs If the Court pl ease , my r ecollec­

tion of the Court's order was that because certain wit-

nesses wer e here in Japan and wanted to r eturn to China, 

that the t estimony of those witnesses could be put on 

out of order. That is, t hey could interrupt tho phase 
I 

on which they wer e offering proof and put in the evidenco · 

of other witnesses who might not be available her e in 

Japan. 

My r ecollection further is that the names of 

those three witnesses wer e Gener al Ching, who has just 

24 t estified, and Mr. Dorrance , and Mr . Fitch, and that 
2~ those are t he only three Vlitnes ses t o whom that order 

- -- - - ~~ 
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1 applied. 

- 1 
I 

2 , MR. SUTTON: May it pleas e the Court, these 

3 witnesses whom we ar e off ering at this time have been 

·I her e in r esponse t o summons i ssued by this Court since 

5 the 12th of June . One , th~ next witness, was brought 

6 from the Unit ed St a t es of America, the r est from ~he 

7 Republic of China. Their own circumstances ar e such 

B that they cannot r emain l onger without great embar-

9 1 rassment. They t estify with r ega~d to certain phases of 

10 tho war in China as t o which the Court has been hearing 

11 t estimony for the l ast s ever al days . 

12 MR. FURNESS : The Court has been hearing the 

13 t estimony of one v1itness to whom tho order of tho Court 

. 
1 

14 

I 
I 

applied . I s ay with that r es ervation that the t estimony ~ 

15 

J6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

::! l 

22 

23 

24 

25 

! 
I 

of the witnesses of whom Mr . Sutton now speaks was not 
• 

the subject of the Court's order. It appli ed to two 

other witnesses . We ar e not prepared on these witnesses I 
which he plans to call now. 

MR . SUTTON: Not only wer e the stntements·ol 

these witness es distributed t o def ense counsel, but the 

def ens e counsel Vlor e given tho names of the particular 

witnesses who will be next called, these names having 

been furnished to them the first of this week at the 

time General Ching was called. 

THE PRESIDENT : The def ense will not be taken 

I 
I 

I 

: 

! 

I 

i 

I 1 
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1 by surprise , Major Furness. 

2 MR. FUR NESS1 I do ob ject to his statement 

3 that these witn~ sses ar e being put on pursuant to a 

2,521 

4 Court order . They ar c not. And I wish the prosecution 

5 would admit that. 

6 I think Colonel Warren wants to say something. 

7 MR. WARR~N: Let tho r ocord show it is Mr . War-

8 ren. 

9 If the Tribunal ploase , in a sense, yes , we are 

10 caught unprepored. Tho mor e pr es entation of an affidavi 

11 to us hP.s no indication es t o when that witness will be 

12 called. Your Honor r ealizes, and as I know all the 

13 Momb ars of th8 Tribunal do r oalize , that because of the 

14 exigencies of time thot has exist ed throughout, we have 

t5 had to prepare our case as tho cas e progressed. 

16 Ordinarily thor c would be no objection to tak-

11 ing a witness out of turn if we were notified in time 

18 so that we may proceed ahead of ourselves 1n~preparing 

19 that particular phase of the case. Vle cannot understand 

20 how any witness can be emb arrassed by being required to 

21 wait a f ew days on one of tho highest tribunal s that 

22 the world has ever known. It s eems stranga to us that 

23 the prosecution did not inform this Tribunal at tho time 

24 that they asked for the other r:itnesses to be taken out 

25 of turn in order that t ho def ense could be prepared. 

- - - - -- ~ .... 

-
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1 We can t ake no other view except that they ar e trying 

2 1 to t ake advantage of a s ituation. That is our unalter-

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

LO 

able 

you 

the 

view, sir . 

ar e 

f act 

THE PRESIDENT : The only question i s whether 

prepar ed t o cross- examine . You have not 

that you ar e not . 

MR . WARREN: Sir ' WC ar c not . 

THE PRESIDENT : Dr. KIYOSE. 

stressed 

DR. KIYOSE i May I speak a f ew words on behalf 

of the Japanese counsol? 

Actually speaking, thi s Tribunal is now under-

12 ' t aking a r eview of the Manchurian phase of the question. 

13 Howev0r, as Ma jor Furness has already pointed out, three 
I 

14 witnesses have been called fr om China , one of whom is 

15 an important official, and other s have very important 

16 bus iness waiting for them in China to t he extent that 

17 t he Tribunal has sa id t hat a mast er commissioner would 

is be asked - - to t he extent that prosecution asked for 

19 a mast er commiss i oner . To this r equest tho Court, in-

20 stead of nominating a master commissioner, has made a 

21 ruling of r eviewing tho case , actually, at this time 

22 her e and it is according to that that the pres ent trial 

2) i s now in progress. 

24 One of these three witness es , nam~ly Gener al 

25 Ching Teh-chun, has alr eady been cross- examined. 

- --- - - ... ~·- --- - -~~ 
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-1 
Following that we have been expecting Mr . Fitch and 

/ 

2 Mr . Dorrance to appear on the witness stand and have 

3 been pr eparing for them ever since this morning. We 
I "I would like to know, Mr . President, what shall we do 

) I about taking evidence from Messrs. Fitch and Dorrance? 

61 One other point which I wi sh to pr es ent to the 

7 
1 Court is that one of tho causes for the confusion here 

al is that witnesses ar c i ntroduced out of order . . If 

•> I witnesses ar e t o be examined with r espect to the China 

H I I 

I 
I J I 

12 I 

Incident, then if an opening stat ement on the China 

Incident would be present ed by the prosecution at the 

outset, then it would vory greatly clarify the position 

13 I and attitude of the prosocution and enabling us, the 
I 

14 I member s of the def ense counsel, t o pr epar e and carry on 

1 ~ ,, our case . 

16 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

-·-.,.. -~- -- -.. 
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- ---- ----· 

In connection with the China Incident, the 

charges made ar e with r espec t t o military aggression, 

economic aggr ession, t o the use of narcotics, and 

other har mful drugs as wel l as atrocities. Unless 

some clarificati on is made by the pr osecution on how 

they ar e going to handle these charges and produce 

their witnesses out of order, it puts us into a very 

difficult position and creat es confusion in this Court. 

As t he honor able Mr. President has already 

sta t ed -- asked of us , we ar e indeed most anxious 

t o cooper ate with this Tribunal. From the standpoint 

of our own r esponsibility in tho handling of the 

case s on hand , we should like t o ask the Tribunal to 

establish n fixed system i n order that the proceed­

ings of this Court may progress smoothly. It is r e­

gr etful _ that since yestcrdny the proceedings have 

not been going on smoothly. 

Japanese counsel r espectfully asks the Tri­

bunal t o make an appr opriate ruling in orde r to assure 

smoothness in the proceedings . The carrying out of 

our r esponsibility -- our desire t o carry out our 

r e sponsibility is also with r espect -- also should 

be taken as our r esponsibility t o tho people or Japan. 

<THE PRESIDENT: Tho case is divided into 

sections by order of the Court, and the Court may 

• 
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1 mod ify i ts order . Instead of having this evidence 

2 token by Commission , the Court has decided t o t ake it 

3 i tself. Nothing mor e t han that has happened. Ther e 

4 has been no confusion , and ther e will be none on that 

5 account . The r eal quest i on i s whether the def ense 

6 ar e in posi tion t o e xamine the witnesse s that will 

7 now be called , and i t appear s they have had nmpl e 

s notice . 

9 I s this witness f r om the United St at es a 

10 l ong witness? 

11 MR . SUTTON: He is, sir, on direct examin-

12 a tion, a ver y short wi tness , His s t atement is con-

13 tained on three pages . 

14 THE PRESIDENT: 11/e will hear his evidence 

15 in chief this aft ernoon , and , if necessary, we will 

l6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

postpone his cross-examination until t omorrow, That 

ought to mee t t he position of the defense . 

MR . WARREN : If t he Tribunal please, I 

would like t o correct one i mpr e ssion -- I think 

wrong i mpr e ssi on -- the Tribunal has . We wor e not 

notified tha t they intended t o call the se witnesses. 

22 They serve us with affidavits, and maybe it would be 

24 

weeks -- I mean a document, and maybe it would be 

weeks before they come up in Court. So much for 

25 tha t phase . 

·------------·----

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
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---- ·-----------------
We should not have objected had we been 

t ol d. However , we ar e in Court without these 

3 affidavits , and we ar e f orced at this time t o ask 

4 the Tribunal t o give us a t ort minute r ecess t o go 

s pick up these s t a t ements from our of f ice . 

6 

7 

8 

9 

lO 

11 

13 

l4 

15. 

l6 

17 

13 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

HR. SUTTON: May it please the Tribunal, I 

called the administrat i ve off i ce of def ense counsel 

myself on Tuesday afternoon , tal ked to Commander 

Harris, and t old him a t thut time , pursuant t o a 

r equest made by Mr . Logan of def ense counsel to Mr. 

Carlisle Hi ggi ns , Acting Chief of Counsel f or the 

pr osecution , on the morning of tha t day -- t old 

Com~ander Harri s tha t the witness whom the prosecu­

tion would off er, f ollowing the t estimony of Gener al 

Ching , was Dr. Robert o. 1·/ilson. I gnve him the 

document numper of Dr . Wilson ' s af fidavit nnd nlso 

t old him t he name of the other witnesses who would be 

off er ed f ollowing Dr. Wilson r 

THE PRESIDENT : The def ense cannot be 

pr ajudiced if the examination in chief is token this 

afternoon. We will t ake the examination in chief 

this n.ftcrnoon. 

MR . WARREN: Ther e i s no contr oversy on 

that , sir. We just want n t en minute r ece ss to run 

nnd ge t our d acumen ts . May vm have tha t , sir? 

-

I 
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WILSON DIRECT 

1 
THE PRESIDENT: Yes, pr oceed. Call the 

witness . 

4 R 0 BE RT o. W I L S 0 N, called as a witness 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

on behalf of the prosecution, being first duly 

sworn, t esti f i ed as f oll ows: 

DIRECT EXAMI NAT ION 

BY MR. SUTTON: 

Q Ar e you Dr. Robert o. Wilson of Arcndia , 

10 California? 

11 

12 

A I am. 

Q I hand you a statement marked IPS document 

13 No. 2246 and ask tf you signed it and made affidavit 

l4 to that. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A This is my affidavit, and I signed it. 

MR . SUTTON: We ask tha t this be filed as 

an exhibit . 

CLERK OF THE COURT : Prosecution's document 

2246 is given exhibit No . 204. 

(Wher eupon, the document above 

r ef erred to was marked prosecution's ex­

hibit No. 204 for identification.) 

MR. LEVIN : Mr . President, we would like 

to object to the use of this affidavit as an exhibit 

in this case or as the testimony of this witness . 

It 

: 

I 
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We believe that none of the r easons assigned by the 

Court for permitt i ng the use of affidavits in this 

case are appl icabl e t o this witness . The witness is 

a gr aduate of Princeton and Harvard Univer sities and 

a well educated man and speaks English as well as 

anyone in this courtroom. 

When the Court announced -- when the 

President announced the decision of the Court to 

permit affidavits, it stated that it did so with 

grave misgivings. We have no situation with this 

witness that is applicabl e t o any of the other wit­

nesses who have nppear od -- that is, those who spoke 

either Chinese or Jnpnncsc . Under these circumstances 

I 

I 
I 

we believe that the witness should be directed -- that 1 

-

the t estimony of the witness should be offer ed by 

question and answer . 

THE PRESIDENT: There is no need for you 

t o say any mor e . We wi ll henr whi:>.t you have to say, 

Mr . Sutton. We see no r en son why this man' s evidence 

in chief should not be tnken in the ordinnry way. 

There is nothing we can think of to justify this 

departure except the mer e f nct that you have pr e-

pared nn affidavit. 

You can treat that as the proof of his 

evidence and examine him from it. The objection is 

------------

I 

I 
I 
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susta ined. 

MR. SUTTON : We had understood , may it 

pl ease the Tribunal, that we should in each ca se 

offer the affidavit of the witness in order t o 

shor t en the pr oceedings nnd then offer the witness 

for cross-examination. 

2,529 

THE PRESIDENT : I t vms offer ed in e vidence , 

ther e was no objection , ond the Court couldn ' t r e ­

j ect it . But it is desirable that the witness 

should now be examined i n chief a s t hough hi s affi­

davi t was a mer e proof of his evidence. 

MR. LEVI N: Mr . Pre sident , my obj ection to 

the affidavit -- I off er ed it as an objection t o the 

affidavit . I assuood thnt that wns the pr oper time 

to make thi; objection, when it was offered in evi­

dence . 

THE PRESIDENT : It was already i n evi dence 

and marked when you ob jected , but we may be pr e ­

par ed t o sustain the objecti on and r e j ect the affi­

dav1 t . We can always do tha t . 

MR. LEVIN: If the Court please , my object­

ion was ba sed accor ding to pr actice to which I am 

accustomed. In our pr actice , when the exhi bi t i s 

offer ed it is not considered in evidence . At t he 

time it was offer ed I thought I made my pr oper 

, __ -·---- ~---·---
- -- ----- ..... -

I 
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objection to it. I now object to it. I thought I 

had objected to it, and I a sk that the Court sustain 

our objecti on to the use of this affidavit. 

THE PRESIDENT : We cnn treat your objection 

5 as made !l!Y1£ pro !Y!l£. and uphold it. We will r e j ect 

6 the affidavit. · 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

21 

25 

The Page had better collect the affidavits 

from the judges. 

MR. SUTTON : Shall I proceed with the 

examinati on, if the Tribunal please? 

TijE PRESIDENT : Yes. 

BY MR. SUTTON (Continued)t 

1906. 

Q Dr. Wilson, when and where were you born? 

A I was born in Nanking , China, October 5, 

Q Vlhnt i s your profession, and where did you 

r eceive your education? 

A I am a surgeon. I r eceived my education at 

Princeton Univer sity and Harvard Medical School. 

Q Following your graduation in medicine, did 

you r eturn t o China, and , if so, during what period 

did you practice medicine in tho Republic of China? 

A I r eturned t o China in January, 1936 and 

practiced medicine at tho University Hospital in 

Nanking, China fr om that time until August of 1940. 

I 

j 

I 
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l 
Q Were you connected with the University 

Hospital in Nanking, and, if so , in wha t c~pacity? 

A I wns an Associa t e in Surgery a t the Uni-

4 versity Hospital in Nnnking. 

5 Q Did the Chinese doctor s ~nd nurses on the 

6 staff of the hospital l eave the hospital in the 

7 Fall of 1937 ond , if so , v1hon? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 I 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

23 

24 

25 

MR. McMANUS: If your Honor please , for the 

record, I object· to tha t question -- to the form of 

the question, and also on the grounds it is very 

l eading , ond r equest tha t the Pre sident shall in­

struct the counsel t o conduct his examination not by 

asking l eading questi ons and a sking them in the proper 

form. 

THE PRESIDENT: The se are mer ely introdu~t· 

ory matters upon which he may well be per mitted to 

lead. 

A Lot e in November, 1937, after the fall of 

Shanghai, when the Japanese Army was approaching 

Nanking, the nurses and doctors of our staff came to 

us with the request tha t they be allowed to proceed 

up-river and not r emain in N~nking when the city 

was t aken by the J apnnc sc s oldiers. Their reason for I 

doing this wns because of the storie s that they heard 

I obout the happenings in tho citie s be tween Shanghai 

'-- - --·-- --

I 
I 
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1 and Nank1ng. These cities wore specifically Su-Chou, 

2 • Wu-Hsi, Chen-Kiang, Tung-Yang, among others. 

3 Our staff f ear ed for their lives and wished 

4 to l enve , and we attempted to calm their fears by 
I 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I 1 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 ! 
25 

saying that under ctarti~l low they would have nothing 

to f ear in Nnnking aft er the city fell. We wer e 

unable to oonvincc them, however, and they l eft to 

up-river, l eaving th0 hospital with Dr. Trimmer, 

another American doctor, and myself, five nurses who 

elected to r emnin behind, and some of the servant 

class who el ected to stay with us. They l eft the 

city about the first of December. All together, 

about twenty Chinese doct ors and some forty or fifty 

nurses and student nurses l oft. 

Q To whnt number had the pati ents in the hos­

pital been r educed immediately prior to the f~ll of 

the city of Nanking? 

A When our staff l eft we wer e forced to r o-

duce the number of pntients to the irreducible limit 

and sent home all who could possibly go home, leaving 

about fifty pati ents in the hospital ' who e ither had 

no place to go or wer e too sick to move. 

-lil 

I 
~ 

I 
--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-~~~---~--~~~--------===·-=- ~ ' ! 
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1937; and if so, in what manner? 

A The Japanese soldiers entered the city on the 

morning of the 13th of December, all resistance having 

ceased on the night of the 12th. Within a very days 

the hospital filled up rapidly with many,many cases 

of injury to men, women and children of all ages, and 

of all degrees . 

MR. BROOKS: If the Court please, I think 

it is objectionable . I think the Court--

THE PRESIDENT : I cannot hear you. Talk 

through the microphone. 

MR . BROOKS: If the Court please, I think this 

line of ques t ioning is objectionable, and I think it 

is made for the poss ibility of influencing the Mombers 

of the Court and that the Court can very wel l take 

judicial notice, and I think the defense woul d be 

willing to agree that in any war there will be casualties 

among civilians women , children and others-- otherwise , 

if such purpose is not shown, I move it should be str icken 

from the record . 

THE PRESIDENT: The objection is over rul ed. 

Proceed. 

I MR. BROOKS: I would like to enter a further 

I objection, on the ground of immateriali ty and i r rel-
'---·--------- ----------·---
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evancy to the issue they are trying to show -- who caused! 

the war. If this had anything to do with it, I don't I 

see where it is material. 

THE PRESIDENT: The objection is overruled. 

Q Doctor, will you give specific instances of 

the types of injuries which had been received by the 

persons whom you treated at the hospital? 

A I can say the few instances of patients that 

I treated during the time immediately following the fall 

of Nankingt but I will not be able to give their names, 

except in the case of two, who are here as witnesses. 

One case that comes to my mind is that of a 

woman of forty, who was brought to the hospital with 

the back of her neck having a laceration severing all 

the muscles of the neck, and leaving the head very 

precariously balanced . From direct questioning of the 

patient, and from those who brought her in, there was 

no --
., MR . MATTICE: I would like to interrupt this 

witness to object; first, for .. tbe reason that,obvious-

ly, what the witness is about to say is heresay; 

secondly, it is not in response to the question which 

was asked him. He was asked to describe the wounds 

which he saw and he now undertakes to tell what the 

woman told him. 

- ,· 
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1 THE PRES IDENT : The ob jection is overruled.~-, 
2 The objection to her esay has been overruled r epeated-

3 ly. 

A (Continuing) Upon direct questioning of the 
.• 

5 I woaan, and r r om the story of those who brought her in, 

there was no doubt in our minds that the work was 6 

7 I that of a Japanese soldier . 

8 

9 

10 

11 

THE PRESIDENI' : He ought t o say what the 

woman told him. 

A (Continuing) A young boy of eight was 

brought in with a deep penetrating wound of the 

12 abdomen, which pierced his stomach. 

13 MR . WARREN: If your Honor please , I was 

1~ about t o object on the same grounds that your Honor 

15 called t o the attention of the witness; that he 

l6 should state what the patient is alleged to have t old 

17 him, instead of hi s conclusions, and let the Court 

18 draw the conclusion. We respectfully r equest the 

19 Tribunal to r equest the witness to state , as near as 

20 

21 

22 

he r ecalls, the conver sations he had with these patients , 

THE PRESIDENI': The ob jections are sustained. 

(Addr essing Mr. Sutton) I do not think you 

23 ar e hear ing me . You will not hear me unless you wear 

24 those headphones. 

25 I said the witness must state what con-

-----
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1 I versations he had with those wounded peopl e . 

A (Continuing) A man was admitted with a 

3 wound through the right shoulder, obviously a bullet 

4 wound , and 

THE WITNESS: If the Court pleases, I 

can t ell his story as he told it to me then. Is 

1 that what I under stand? 

8 j 
I 

91 
I 

10 I 
11 

I 
12 

A cc ~:-:t inuinB ) He Vias one - - the only survivor 

of a large group of men v1ho wer e t aken to the river 

bank of the Yangtze River and individually shot. The 

bodies wer e pushed into the r iver, and hence the 

actua l number cannot be ascertained. But he feigned 

13 1 death, crept avray in the darkness, and came to the 

14 hospital. Thi s man' s name vras Liang . 

l~ Another man was a Chinese policeman and was 

16 brought t o the hospital with a very deep l acer ation 

17 across the raiddle of his back . He was the only sur-

18 vivor of a l arge group taken outside the city wall, 

19 who wer e a l so first machine - gunned and the wounded 

20 were then pierced with bayonets to be sure t hat they 

21 were dead . That man's name was Wu Chang-teh. 

22 

23 

24 

One noon I wa s having lunch in my house, when j 

the neighbors rushed in and told us, at the table, that I 
some Japane se soldiers v1Cr e raping the women in their 

I 
I 
I 

2~ house . 
, _______ MR_ . WARREN : If your Honor please, that 

- - - - -

I 

'I 
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l 
obviously is not an answer to t he question that was 

2 , propounded to t hi s witness and we r equest that he be 

3 required to answer the question and undoubtedly the 

4 prosecution will bring t hose out in further questioning. 

5 THE PRESIDENT : He should confine his answers 

6 to the ques tions, but I do not think he infringed 

7 very seriously. These are all r elated matters. The 

8 

9 

objection i s overruled. 
I 

We rushed out of the house to accom-1 A (Continuing) 

10 pany the men back to their own hous e , and the people 

11 in the co~rtyard pointed to the closed door of the 

12 gate-house . Thr ee Japanese soldiers stood about in the 

13 courtyard with their bayonets. Vie pushed in the 
14 

15 

16 

17 

13 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

door of the gate-house, and found two Japanese soldiers 

in the act of raping two Chinese women. We took the 

women to the University of Nanking Refugee -- the campus 

where ther e was a large group of r efugees, under the 

supervision of the International Refugee Committee. 

A man came into the hospital with a bullet 

through his jaw, barely able to t alk. About two­

thirds of his body was very badly burned. His story, 

as nearly as we could make it out, was that he had been 

seized by Japanese soldiers , shot, covered with gaso­

line, and set afire. He died two days later. 

Another man was admitted with a very severe 
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burn covering his entire head and shoulders . Whil e 

still able to talk, he told us that he was the only 

survivor of a large group who had been bound together, 

had gas-oline sprayed over them, and were set afire. 

We have pictures of these particular cases, 

that I have mentioned so far . 

An old man of s ixty was admitted with a 

8 bayonet wound in his chest . His s tory was that he had 

9 gone from the r efugee zone back into t he other part of 

10 the city to look for a r elative . He met a Japanese 

11 soldier who bayoneted him in th0 chest and threw him in 

12 the gutter for dead. He r ecover ed six hour s later 

1, 

l 3 he recover ed consciousness six hours later and was able 1 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to get to t he hospital . 

Cases like this co~nued to come in for a 

matter of some s ix or s even weeks following the fall 

of the city on December 13, 1937. The capacity of the 

hospital was normally one hundred and eighty beds, 

and this was kept full to overflowing during this entire 

period. 

Q Doctor, were any children brought in with 

wounds during this period? 

A I mentioned the e ight year ol d boy. There are 

two other cases that come t o my mind: 

One was that of a l i ttle girl of seven or 

'-- ----------
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1 I e i ght, who had a very serious wound of the elbow, with 

21 t he elbow joint exposed . Her story to me was that 

3 Japanese soldiers had kil led her fa~her and mother in 

4 1 front of her eyes, and given her this wound . 

~ A girl of f ifteen was brought into the hospital by 

6 t he Rever end John Magee, wit h the•IStorythat she had 

1 been r aped. h medical examinati om confirmed this. 

a I About two months later this girl c.ime again into the 

91 hospital with a secondary r ash of syphilis. 
I 

10 Q Did these patients r eport to you from whom 
I 

11 I they had r eceived the wounds? 

12 1 A They mer ely stated that they received the 

13 1 wounds a t the hands -- without exception they r eported 

14
1 that the wounds wer e r eceived at the hands of Japanese 

15 soldiers. 
I 

16 Q Doctor, ar e these t wo patients . -- Captain 

17 Liang and Wu-Chang-teh -- in Tokyo? 

18 A The man you r ef er to as Captain Liang at the 

19 time I knew him, he was a stretcher-bear er in the Chinese 

20 Army. He i s her e in Tokyo, and Wu-Chang-teh, the police-

21 man a lso mentioned previously, a l so i s in Tokyo. 
22 THE PRESIDENT: Colonel Morrow, apparently he 

23 has not heard the witness finish his answer. 
24 Q Doctor, was there any change in the matter or 
25 the sa l e of opium in the City of Nanking followimg the 

-~~ ------ - -- - -..- • 
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I i occupation of that city by the Japanese in December, ---i 
2 j 1937? 

MR . WARREN: If the Tribunal please, patently 

4 
1 

that does not t end to prove or disprove any of the is-

6
~ I sues in this case, and we ask that the witness not be 

permitted to answer, and that this line of cross-examinn-
I 

7 I tion -- of direct examination -- be abandoned . 

8 1 THE PRESIDENT: It is certainly objectionable 

9 1 as leading in a very important matter, but what about 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 I 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2> 

24 

. 
this question of r el evancy? I will hear you on that. 

The question is l eading, and lead ing in a very important 

matter, but it is also objected to as being irrelevant. 

I would like to hear you on that . 

(Addressing Mr. Warren) I would like to hear 

him, Mr . Warren, 

MR . SUTTON : May it please the Tribunal, it 

is the purpose of the testimony to show whether or not 

there was an increase in the open sale of opium and 

narcotics in the City of Nanking following the occupa­

tion; and if so, something of the extent of ttiat increase 

THE PRESIDENT: There is a count in the Indict-

ment covering nnrcoties, but I forget the exact t erms. 
I 

MR . StrrTON: It is to this charge in the Indict- , 

ment that this portion of the evidence is directed. 

THE PRESIDENT: Well, r ead the charge . 
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1 I MR. SUTTON : Will your Honor excuse me for 

2 a moment while I find the proper pl ace in the Indict-

3 ment? 

4 THE PRESIDENT: Well, this is a conveni ent 

5 time to adjourn. '!1e wil l r eces s now until half past 

61 nine tomorrow morning. 

7 (Wher eupon, a t 1600, an· adjournnent · 

s was t aken unti l Friday, 26 July 1946, at 0930.) 
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